KOSOVO COUNTRY DIRECTORATE
ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2021

Prishtina, 2022




TABLE OF CONTENTS

SCOPE OF THE REPORT

KOSOVO COUNTRY DIRECTORATE

VISION — MISSION ~ STRATEGIES

MAIN INDICATORS

LETTER OF COUNTRY DIRECTOR

SUSTAINABILITY APPROACH

MACRO ECONOMIC INDICATORS

HUMAN RESOURCES

INTERNAL AUDIT

10. "COMPLIANCE =

11 AML o

12, RISK MANAGEMENT

13. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 AND INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR'S REPORT i

b A Pl e

SO WD NS 00 00 00~ Y Lh LA LA

—



1. SCOPE OF THE REPORT

This annual report has been prepared to address the performance of T.C. Ziraat Bankasi A.S
Kosovo — Branch (Bank or Directorate) for the period from 01.01.2021 to 31.12.2021. The
data collected for the purpose of this report constitute benchmark criteria for the annual
reports to be published by the Directorate in the future. The report is published annnally and
it is anticipated to be reported on annual basis in the following years as well.

2. KOSOVO COUNTRY DIRECTORATE

T.C. Ziraat Bankass A.S. as a leading bank in Tiirkiye expanded its banking activity in the
market of Kosovo by opening its first branch in Prishtina, capital city of Kosovo, on 8th of
June 2015. Furthermore, with the establishing of Prizren and Peja Branches in 2018, and
later with Ferizaj Branch in 2019, the number of branches in the country was increased to
four. The four branches are affiliated to the Kosovo Country Directorate, which was
established on 12% December 2019.

Since its establishment, the Bank has aimed to achieve a 'Sustainable impact on its clients
and environment through its overall operations. Our approach is proving support to
economic development through financing of the chents and projects with hlgh impact on
the overall country’s economy SR

3. VISION — MISSION — STRATEGIE_S :
Our Vision

To be a bank that is universal, respected and has high market value; a bank that provides
extensive, reliable service everywhere in Tiirkiye and the world at the same quality, and
meets the needs of every segment; a bank that sees human resources as its most valuable
asset; a bank that continuously makes a difference and creates value in a way that befits its
deep-rooted past; a bank that promises more from a bank at every stage and serves as a
model for its competitors.

Our Mission

To be a bank that understands customer needs and expectations, thereby offering them the
best solutions and value recommendations from the most appropriate channel; a bank that
brings to every segment of society a wide range of products and services in the fastest, most
effective way through its extensive network of branches and alternative distribution



- channels; a bank that operates with profitability and productivity at global standards by
recognizes its ethical values and social responsibility; a bank that holds customer
satisfaction to be more important than anything else.

Our Strategies

- Selective credit policy and effective use of resources,

- Providing digital solutions to customers,

- Continuously increasing employee experience and organizational efficiency by
constantly improving the way of domg business and mvestmg in the professmnal

: development of its employees, .

- '_-_Maxmzmg customer satlsfactron by producmg mtegrated ﬁnanc;lal solutlons in all
countries where Ziraat Finance Group operates, : o o

- Taking part in Kosovo’s international trade with Tiirkiye and the world,

- Providing services to customers at any time and on every platform, within the framework
of the service models of the future,

- Integratlng env1ronmental and social nsk govemance prmcrples into the business model.

4. MAIN INDICATORS
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TOTAL ASSETS CASH LOANS DEPOSITS EQUITY
52020 ®2021

(EUR) 2020 2021 %
Cash and Cash Equivalents 851,147 672,884 -2094%
Securities 6,857,819 7,003,986 2,13%
Cash Loans 56,491,092 65,514,143  15,97%
Customer Deposits 58,483,452 69,870,193 19.47%
Other Deposits 7,012,379 13,579,108  93.64%
Equity 8,931,868 9,496,642 6.32%
Interest Incomes 3,371,066 4,230,808  25.51%
Interest Expenses 1,080,456 1,289,215 19.32%
Net Profit 092,934 564,774 -56.88%
Total Assets 75,446,294 93,851,082  24.39%




5. LETTER OF COUNTRY DIRECTOR

Last year was the year of recovery for the economy of Kosovo and considered to be a
successful year for Kosovo banking sector. Regardless of the impact of the pandemic during
the year 2021, Kosovo had a real GDP growth of 10.5%, which is considered a very
significant economic growth. The positive developments of the economic activities reflected
on gradually easing pandemic measures, governmental supportive policies, as well as the
record inflow of diaspora remittances in amount of € 1.14 billion.

These positive developments in the overall economy, also reflected in our bank to have
stable financial performance and our customers being satisfied with the bank supporting
them. We have closely monitored our customers and identify the most appropriate financing
sohitions for clients, to enable them to recover from the negative inpacts caused by the
pandemics.

Acting upon this approach, our bank increased its loans to customers for 16% to €
65,514,143 comparing to the year 2020 with € 56,491,092 which was important to help our
customers overcome their financial problems due to pandemic conditions. Our customers’
deposits also increased %19.47 reaching € 69,870,193 comparing to the year 2020 with €
58,483,452, S o R

We have also introduced a digital offer to our customers for e-banking and their possibility
to open accounts online, which was further promoting our support to them. We have been
also focused on our employees’ heaith and well-being by creating conditions to work from
home. ' '

Therefore, on behalf of the Directorate, I would like to thank all our employees for their
commitment and dedication which has enabled to close the financial year 2021 in a positive
trend. o o



6. SUSTAINABILITY APPROACH

As a financial service provider, Ziraat Bank is determined to establish and maintain
sustainable and proactive approach towards environmental protection and social equality.

- As a strong, leading and trusted bank, we are committed to our sustainability strategy
and increase our positive impact in addressing long-term environmental and social
challenges.

- Environmental and social issues and their potential risks are handled with a careful and
meticulous approach in decision-making processes, management of resources and
service ‘infrastructure. Environmental and social sustainability is recognized as an
important agenda item, including climate change and the transition to a low carbon
economy.

- As an employer, the Bank believes in the importance of human-oriented working
conditions. In the business model, importance is given to creating a learning
organizational structure by providing equal opportunities and self-development
opportunities to all employees. Increase of employee motivation and corporate loyalty
through continuous improvement of human resources practices is one of the bank’s key
objective. '

- The bank’s goal is to maintain high levels of customer satisfaction and loyalty by
continuously improving its processes and offer banking products and services to all its

: -customers in practlcal understandablc and accessible formats.

7. MACRO ECONOMIC INDICATORS

The Kosovo's economy marked a significant recovery during 2021, following the severe
effects of pandemic that characterized 2020, Kosovo's economy increased by 10.5% in 2021
but this increase is expected to slow down in 2022 mainly due to lower growth of domestic
demand and increases in the net export deficit. Global inflationary pressures continue to
interrupt the recovery. While the inflation rate for consumer prices in 2020 was 0.2%, in
2021 it was realised as 6.7%.

In 2021, Kosovo imported goods in value of 4,684,198.000 EUR while exported goods in
value of 755,726,000 EUR. Although the trade balance shortfall increased to -3,928,472,000
EUR, the percentage of coverage is improved from 14.4% to 16.10%.

8. HUMAN RESOURCES

Directorate and Branches consist of 31 employees, out of which 16 work in the branches
while 15 work in the Directorate. Bank personnel consists of local people with very good
knowledge of English and Turkish language. On a gender basis, 17 are males and 14 are
females. Based on age, 1 personnel is under 30 years old, 19 personnels are between 30 and
40 years old and 11 personnels are between 40 and 50 years old.




9. INTERNAL AUDIT

The Board of Directors of the Bank has established the internal audit function as the third
line of defense of the internal control system, which is overseen by the Audit Commiitee of
the Bank. Internal audit function provides an independent assessment of the adequacy of,
and compliance with the institution policies and procedures as well as with regulatory
regulations. As an independent function, internal audit reports to Audit Committee of the
Bank through the related department in Head Office in Tiirkiye. During 2021, based on the
approved audit plan, iniernal audit function has issued 9 audit reports of different processes
which are presented to Board of Directors through the Audit Committee of the Bank.

10. COMPLIANCE

Establishing an effective compliance function and compliance program has become a
necessity to protect any highly regulated organization. Our Bank is committed to preserve
its integration and reputation by ensuring good understanding of strict compliance with
applicable laws and regulations both local and at group level.

At its core, an effective compliance program protects an organization by detecting and
preventing improper conduct and promoting adherence to the organization's legal and
ethical obligations.

Compliance function in the Bank is an independent function reporting to Audit Committee
of the Bank through the related department in Head Office in Tirkiye. Compliance function
is responsible to ensure that compliance framework in the bank is designed properly to
ensure compliance risk identification and mitigation, assessment, monitoring and reporting.
This function is responsible to advise and assist executive management with respect to any
compliance risk, inform them on regulatory developments, implementation and the impact
on banking industry. Consequently, it provides recommendation on how to improve
compliance with regulatory requirements and avoid compliance risks to which the Bank
may be exposed.

11. AML

Combatting financial crimes and complying with applicable national and international laws
and regulations is vital to ensuring the stability of the Bank. A robust and effective internal
control environment and adequate infrastructure (comprising people, policies and
procedures, controls, testing, and IT systems) necessary to ensure that we conduct our
business in compliance with the laws, regulations and associated supervisory expectations.

Our anti-money laundering (AML) and know-your customer (K'Y C) processes and controls
aim at preventing misuse of our products and services to commit financial crime. The Bank
continually seeks to enhance the efficacy of our internal control environment and improve
our infrastructure. During 2021, AML Department has revised the rules that define



customers’ risk scoring and interal controls integrated within AML Module which provides
a comprehensive examination and correct identification of suspicious activities, therefore
enabling the bank to monitor and identify potential money laundering and terrorist financing
cases in on-going basis. Among other things, the Bank is focused on reviewing clients’
information in order to have accurate information about their profiles which enables the
Bank to understand its clients and their financial dealings, to serve them better and manage
its risks prudently.

12. RISK. MANAGEMENT

Risk Management Department of the Directorate ensures that an adequate and effective risk
management system is in place in order to identify, quantify, review, evaluate and measure
risk in accordance with regulatory compliance and audit requirements, approved risk
tolerance, risk appetite and strategic plans approved by the Bank.

Starting from January 2020, the Bank has implemented the IFRS 9 model for calculating
ECL (expected credit loss).

In line with the Bank’s objective to increase the credit portfolio, the Bank predicted an
increase in provisions in proportion to the growth of the portfolio, whereas more
conservative provisions are predicted for some sectors.

Based on actual progress, we see that the year 2021 will be closed by calculating provisions
by about 2% of the total credit portfolio (loans and guarantees, banks and securities), while
according to our forecasts, with the growth of the portfolio and the trend of delays until the
end of 2022, we predict that the percentage of the provision in total credit portfolio will be
around 2.7%,




13. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 AND INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR'S REPORT

TURKIYE CUMHURIYET! ZIRAAT BANKASI A.S. ~ KOSOVO BRANCH

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT AND
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
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TURKIVE CUMHURIYETI ZIRAAT BANKAS! A.S. — KOSOVO BRANCH
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended December 31, 2021

In EUR
Share capital Accumulated Revaluation .
T'otal
loss reserve

As at January 1, 2020 10,000,000  (2,066,712) 5,646 7,938,933
Profit for the year - 990,321 - | 990,321
Other comprehensive income - - 2,613 2,613
T o_ta_i_(_:omprehensi_ve income - 990,321 2,613 992,934
Balance as at December 31, 2020 10,000,000 (1,076,391) 8,259 8,931,868
Balance as at January 1, 2021 10,000,000 (1,076,391) 8,259 8,931_,868

' Profit for the year . 564774 ; 564,774
Other comprehensive income - - - -
“Total comprehensive income - 564,774 - 564,774
“Balance as at December 31, 2021 14,000,000 (511,617) 8,259 9,496,642

The staternent of changes in equity is to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the
financial statements set out on pages 7 to 58. - .



TURKIYE CUMHURIYETI ZIRAAT BANKASI A.S. —- KOSOVO BRANCH

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended December 31, 2021

In EUR

Operating activities
Profit before taxation
Adjustment for:
Amortization and depreciation
Net impairment loss on loans to customers
Expected credit loss of other financial assets
Interest income
Interest expense

- Loss before changes in operating assets and
liabilities '

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Statutory reserves - DEK

Statutory reserves — 10%

Loans to customers

Other assets

Due to customers
Duetobanks .
“Other liabilities

Income tax paid

Interest received

Interest paid

Net cash (aused in)/ generated from
operating activities

Investment activities

Purchase of property and equipment and
intangible assets

Net redemptions / (purchase) of securities

Net cash (used in) investing activities

Financing activities
Repayment of lease liabilities

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the
year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year

Note

12,13&14
10
24
21
21

10
i5
16
17&18
19

12,13,14
11

14

For the year eaded

For the year ended

December 31,2021  December 31, 2020
672,147 1,114,434
482,195 482,487
854,175 38,848

9,725 ' -
(4,230,898) (3,371,066)
1,289,215 1,080,456
(923,441) . (654,841)
139,790 269,596
144,540 (5,187,001)
(9,930,726) (12,331,787)
31,495 . (244,330)
11,211,131 S 14,578,870
6,496,254 - . (4,801,973)
(3,694) 675,950
7,165,349 (7,695,516)
(96,585) -
4,282 465 3,206,183
(1,000,531) {942,542)
10,350,698 (5,431,875)
(614,268) (949,189)
(144,387) (268,694)
(758,655) {1,217,883)
(161,934) -
(161,934) -
9,430,109 {6,649,758)
4,644,383 11,294,141
14,074,492 4,044,383

The statement of cash flows is to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the financial

statements set out on pages 7 to 58.




TURKIYE CUMHURIYETI ZIRAAT BANKASI A.S. - KOSOVO BRANCH
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2021

(Al amounts expressed in EUR, unless otherwise stated)

1. Introduction

Turkiye Cumhuriyeti Ziraat Bankasi A.S. — Kosovo Branch (“the Bank™) is a foreign branch of Turkiye
cumhuriyeti ziraat bankasi a.s which operates in the Republic of Kosovo, The address of its registered Head
Office is Ukshin Hoti Street, No-13,10000 Prishtina, Republic of Kosovo,

In accordance with the Central Bank of Kosovo (“CBK”) regulations, the Bank obtained a license for banking
activities on June 2, 2015 and commenced operations on June 7, 2015. The Bank operates as a commercial and
savings bank for all categories of customers within Kosovo, through its network of 4 main branches in Prishtina,
Prizren, Peja and Ferizaj. The Bank employs 31, employees as at 31 December 2021 (29 employees as at 31
December 2020), ' ' R

2. Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance. These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards. The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless
otherwise stated. o SR e

Use of judgements and estimates. In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the Bank’s accounting policies and the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised prospectively.
Information about significant arcas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are described
innotes 4,5 and 6. .
Functional and presentation currency. These financial statements are presented in EUR, which is the Bank’s
functional currency, currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates. All amounts
have been rounded to the nearest thousands, except when otherwise indicated. BRI R P S

Going concern. Management continues to have a reasonable expectation that the bank has adequate resources 0
continue in operation for at least the next 12 months and that the going concern basis of accounting remains
appropriate. The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic and the measures adopted by the government in Kosova to
mitigate its spread have not significantly impacted the Bank. Although the Bank has accumulated losses of EUR
511,617 as at December 31,2021, ithas closed the year with a profit of EUR 564,774 and has a total positive equity
of EUR 9,496,642. - ' AR
However, there is still uncertainty over how the future development of the outbreak will affect the Bank’s
business and customer demand for its products. As at the date of authorization of the financial statements, the
Bank has sufficient liquidity and going concem basis is appropriate. B .

The bank has reasonable expectations that it can continue to fund itself and maintain required capital ratios.

3, Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial

statements.
a) Interest

Effective interest rate
Interest income and expense are recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method. The ‘effective

interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument to:

» the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

+ the amortised cost of the financial liability.



TURKIYE CUMHURIYETI ZIRAAT BANKASI A.S. — KOSOVO BRANCH
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2021

{(All amounts expressed in EUR, unless otherwise stated)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
a) Interest (continued)

When calculating the effective interest rate for financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-
impaired assets, the Bank estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument, but not ECL. For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective
interest rate is calculated using estimated fisture cash flows including ECL. - SRR

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees and points paid or received that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or financial liability. '

Amortised cost and gross carrying amount

The *amortized cost’ of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and
the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any expected credit loss allowance (or impairment
allowance before 1 January 2018). ' : ' : | .

The ‘_'gross carrying amount of a financial asset’ is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for
any expected credit loss allowance, R IR

Calculation of interest income and expense

The effective interest rate of a financial asset or financial lability is calculated on initial recognition of a
financial asset or a financial liability. In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost
of the liability. The effective interest rate is revised as a result of periodic re-estimation of cash flows of floating
rate instruments to reflect movements in market rates of interest.. T

However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial reco gnition, interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no
longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis. S

For financial assets that were credit-impaired on initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying
the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the asset. The calculation of interest income
does not revert to a nominal basis, even if the credit risk of the asset improves. U

b) Fees and commissions

Fees integral to the effective interest rate include origination fees received or paid by the entity relating to the
creation or acquisition of a financial asset or issuance of a financial liability, for example fees for evaluating
creditworthiness, evaluating and recording guarantees or collateral, negotiating the terms of the instrument and
for processing transaction documents. Commitment fees received by the Bank to originate loans at market
interest rates are integral to the effective interest rate if it is probable that the Bank will enter into a specific
lending arrangement and does not expect to sell the resulting loan shorily after origination. All other fees, which
are integral part of effective interest rate calculation are presented in interest income

All other fees, commissions and other income and expense items are generally recorded on an accrual basis by
reference to completion of the specific transaction assessed on the basis of the actual service provided as a
proportion of the total services to be provided. Other fee and commission income and expenses consist of fees
and commissions from (for): credit cards, account service fees, international payments, domestic payments,
Central Bank fees, SMS banking, guarantees and letters of credit and other fees and commissions. Other fee and
commissions are recognised as the related services are performed. Other fees and commission expense relate
mainly to transaction and service fees, which are expensed as the services are received.




TURKIYE CUMHURIYETI ZIRAAT BANKASI A.S. — KOSOVO BRANCH
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in EUR, unless otherwise stated)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
¢} Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currency at the spot exchange
rates at the date of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated into the
functional currency at the spot exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency gain-or loss on monetary items
is the difference between the amortised cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the year, adjusted for
effcctive interest and payments during the year, and the amortised cost in the foreign currency translated at the
spot exchange rate at the end of the year. o P SO

Foreign currency differences arising on translation are generally recognised in profit or loss.

d) Income tax

Income taxes have been provided for in the financial statements in accordance with legislation enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. e

The income tax charge comprises current tax and deferred income tax and is recognised in profit or loss for the
year, except if it is recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity because it relates to
transactions that are also recognised, in the same or a different period, in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. . Lo D

(1) Current fax _

Current tax js the amount expected to be paid to, or recovered from, the taxation authorities in respect of taxable
profits or losses for the current and prior periods. Taxable profits or losses are based on estimates if the financial
statements are authorised prior to filing relevant tax returns. Taxes other than on income are recorded within
administrative and other operating expenses. o IR

(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method for tax loss carry forwards and
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and Habilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes. LR
Deferred tax balances are measured at tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, which are expected to apply to the period when the temporary differences will reverse or the fax loss
carry forwards will be utilised. Lo R R

Deferred tax assets for deductible temporary differences and tax loss carry forwards are recorded only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductions can be utilised.

(it} Uncertain tax positions

The Bank's uncertain tax positions are reassessed by management at the end of each reporting period, Liabilities
are recorded for income tax positions that are deteninined by management as more likely than not to result in
additional taxes being levied if the positions were to be challenged by the tax authorities. The assesstnent is
based on the interpretation of tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, and any known court or other rulings on such issues. Liabilities for penalties, interest and taxes other
than on income are recognised based on management’s best estimate of the expenditure required fo settle the
obligations at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended December 31, 2021
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
¢) Financial instruments (continued)

{1) Recognition and initial measurement

The Bank initially recognizes d and advances, deposits on the date on which they are originated. All other
financial instruments (including regular-way purchases and sales of financial assets) are recognized on the trade
date, which is the date on which the Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL,
transaction costs that are directly attnbutabie to its acquisition or issue. : :

(i) Classification

Financial assets

On mztial reeogmtlon a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost, FVOCI or FVTPL
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:
~» - the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractuai cash
flows; and
e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that a_r_e SPPI.

A financial asset is measured at I VOCI onIy 1f it meets both of the followmg conditions and is not demgnated
as at FVTPL:
"~ e 'the asset is held w1th1n a busmess model whose objective is achleved by both collectmg contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and :
¢ the confractual terms of the financial asset give rise on speciﬁed dates to cash flows that are SPP_L

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL,

In addition, on initial recognition, the Bank may irrevocably designate a financial asset that 0therw1se meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so ehmmates or 31g111ﬁcant1y
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise L

Business model assessment

The Bank makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a portfolio level
because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The
information considered includes:

¢ the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. In
particular, whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining
a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of the
liabilities that are funding those assets or realizing cash flows through the sale of the assets;

¢ how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Bank’s management;

e the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and its strategy for how those risks are managed;

e the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its expectations
about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered in isolation, but
as part of an overall assessment of how the Bank’s stated objective for managing the financial assets is
achieved and how cash flows are realized.

Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis
are measured at FVTPL because they are neither held to collect contractual cash flows nor held both to collect
contractual cash flows and to sell financial assets.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
¢) Financial instruments (continued)

(i) Classification (continued)

Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition, ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and
costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin. ' '

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPL the Bank considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change
the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the
assessment, the Bank considets:

contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

leverage features,;

prepayment and extension terms;

terms that limit the Bank’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse loans); and
features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest rafes).

¢ & & & ©&

The Bank holds a portfolio of long-term fixed-rate loans for which the Bank has the option to propose to revise
the interest rate at periodic reset dates. These reset rights are limited to the market rate at the time of revision.
The borrowers have an option to either accept the revised rate or redeem the loan at par without penalty. The
Bank has determined that the contractual cash flows of these loans are SPPIbecause the option varies the interest
rate in a way that is consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and costs
associated with the principal amount outstanding. ' C

Non-recourse loans

In some cases, loans made by the Bank that are secured by collateral of the borrower limit the Bank’s claim to
cash flows of the underlying collateral (non-recourse loans). The Bank applies judgment in assessing whether
the non-recourse loans meet the SPPI criterion. The Bank typically considers the following information when
making this judgement:

o whether the contractual arrangement specifically defines the amounts and dates of the cash payments
of the loan; ' o

e the fair value of the collateral relative to the amount of the secured financial asset;

the ability and willingness of the borrower to make contractual payments, notwithstanding a decline in

the value of collateral; o

whether the borrower is an individual or a substantive operating entity or is a special-purpose entity;

the Bank’s risk of loss on the asset relative to a full-recourse loan;

the extent to which the collateral represents all or a substantial portion of the borrower’s assets; and

whether the Bank will benefit from any upside from the underlying assets.

® & & @

Contractually linked instruments

The Bank has some investments in securitizations that are considered contractually linked instruments.
Contractually linked instruments each have a specified subordination ranking that determines the order in which
any cash flows generated by the pool of underlying investments are allocated to the instruments. Such an
instrument meets the SPPI criterion only if all of the following conditions are met:

11
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o the contractual terms of the instrument itself give rise to cash flows that are SPPI without looking
through to the underlying pool of financial instruments;
3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

¢} Financial instruments (continued)

Contractually linked instruments (continued)

¢ the underlying pool of financial instruments (i) contains one or more instruments that give rise to cash
flows that are SPPI; and (ii) may also contain instruments, such as derivatives, that reduce the cash
flow variability of the instruments under (i) and the combined cash flows (of the instruments under (i)
and (ii)) give rise to cash flows that are SPPL or align the cash flows of the coniractually linked
instruments with the cash flows of the pool of underlying instruments under (i) arising as a result of
differences in whether interest rates are fixed or floating or the currency or timing of cash flows; and

e the exposure to credit risk inherent in the contractually linked instruments is equal to or less than the
exposure (o credit risk of the underlying pool of financial instruments. - :

Reclassifications

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the Bank
changes its business model for managing financial assets. T '
(ifi) Derecognition .

Financial assets '

The Bank derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire (see also (iv)), or it transfers the rights 1o receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantiaily all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Bank
ueither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control
of the financial asset. ' e e
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying

amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration received
(including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) -

Any cumulative gain/loss recognised in OCI in respect of equity investment securities designated as at FVOCI
is not recognised in profit or loss on derecognition of such securities, Any interest in transferred financial assets
that quality for derecognition that is created or retained by the Bank is reco gnised as a separate asset or liability.

The Bank enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its statement of financial position,
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them.
In such cases, the transferred assets are not derecognised. Examples of such transactions are securities lending
and sale-and-repurchase transactions. '

When assets are sold to a third party with a concurrent total rate of return swap on the transferred assets, the
transaction is accounted for as a secured financing transaction similar to sale-and-repurchase transactions,
because the Bank retains all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of such assets.

In fransactions in which the Bank neither retains nor transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over the asset, the Bank continues to recognise the asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changes in the value
of the transferred asset.

In certain transactions, the Bank retains the obligation to service the transferred financial asset for a fee. The
transferred asset is derecognised if it meets the derecognition criteria. An asset or liability is recognised for the
servicing contract if the servicing fee is more than adequate (asset) or is less than adequate (liability) for
performing the servicing,

12
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

¢) Financial instruments (continued)
(iii) Derecognition (continued}

Financial liabilities

The Bank derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
(iv) Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets ' o

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, then the Bank evaluaies whether the cash flows of the modified
asset are substantially different. SRR '

If the cash flows are substantiaily different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial
assel are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial asset is derecognised (see (iil)) and a new
financial asset is recognised at fair value plus any eligible transaction costs. Any fees received as part of the
modification are accounted for as follows: L

o fees that are considered in determining the fair value of the new asset and fees that represent
reimbursement of eligible transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of the asset; and
e other fees are included in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on derecognition. .

If cash flows are modified when the borrower is in financial difficulties, then the objeciive of the modification
is usually to maximise recovery of the original contractual terms rather than to. originate a new asset with
substantially different terms. If the Bank plans to modify a financial asset in a way that would result in
forgiveness of cash flows, then it first considers whether a portion of the asset should be written off before the
modification takes place (see below for write-off policy). This approach impacts the result of the guantitative
evaluation and means thaf the derecognition criteria are not usually met in such cases. ' : -

If the modification of a financial assct measured at amortised cost or FVOCI does not result in derecognition of
the financial asset, then the Bank first recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset uging the
original effective interest rate of the asset and recognises the resulting adjustment as a modification gain or loss
in profit or loss. For floating-rate financial assets, the original effective interest rate used to calculate the
modification gain or loss is adjusted to reflect current market terms at the time of the modification. Any costs
or fees incurred and fees received as part of the modification adjust the gross carrying amount of the modified
financial asset and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified financial asset. - '

{f such a modification is carried out because of financial difficulties of the borrower (see (vii)), then the gain or
loss is presented together with impairment losses. In other cases, it is presented as interest income calculated
using the effective interest rate method. SR :

Financial labilities

The Bank derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified
liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss. Consideration paid includes non-financial assets transferred,
if any, and the assumption of Habilities, including the new modified financial liability.

If the modification of a financial liability is not accounted for as derecognition, then the amortised cost of the
Hiability is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original effective interest rate and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. For floating-rate financial liabilities, the original effective
interest rate used to calculate the modification gain or loss is adjusted to reflect current market terms at the time
of the modification. Any costs and fees incurred are recognised as an adjustment to the carrying amount of the
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liability and amortised over the remaining term of the modified financial Hability by re-computing the effective
interest rate on the instrument.

3. Significant accounting policies {continued)

¢} Financial instruments (continued)

(v} Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Bank currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to seftle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under IFRS, or for gains and losses
arising froim a group of similar transactions such as in the Bank’s trading activity. S

{vi) Fair value measurement

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
‘transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most
advantageous market to which the Bank has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-
performance risk. S e P TR T R R R
When one is available, the Bank measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active
market for that instrument. A market is regarded as ‘active’ if transactions for the asset or liability take place
with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis, - . '

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Bank uses valuation techniques that maximise the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique
incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction. =~

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the fransaction
price — i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Bank determines that the fair value on
initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in
an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique for which any unobservable
inputs are judged to be insignificant in relation to the measurement, then the financial instrument is initially
measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value on initial recognition and the
transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognised in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the
life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or the -
transaction is closed out, o F e TR DI AR AR

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the Bank measurcs assets
and long positions at a bid price and liabilities and short positions at an ask price.

Portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities that are exposed to market risk and credit risk that are
managed by the Bank on the basis of the net exposure to either matket or credit risk are measured on the basis
of a price that would be received to sell a net long position (or paid to transfer a net short position) for the
particular risk exposure. Portfolio-level adjustments — e.g. bid-ask adjustment or credit risk adjustments that
reflect the measurement on the basis of the net exposure - are allocated to the individual assets and labilities
on the basis of the relative risk adjustment of cach of the individual instruments in the portfolio.

The fair value of a financial Hability with a demand feature (e.g. a demand deposit) is not less than the amount
payable on demand, discounted from the first date on which the amount could be required to be paid.

The Bank recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
¢) Financial instruments (continued)

(vii) Impairment
The Bank recognizes Joss allowances for ECL on the following credit exposures that are not measured at
FVTPL: ' BT T

e financial assets that are debt instruments;
lease receivables;

e financial guarantee contracts issued; and
e loan commitments issued.

No impairment loss is recognized on equity investments.

The Bank measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the following, for which
they are measured as 12-month ECL: s R SRR

o debt investment securitics that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting dafe; and
e other financial instruments (other than lease receivables) on which credit risk has not increased
significantly since their initial recognition and which are not POClIs

Loss allowances for lease receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. R

The Bank considers a debt investment security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent
to the globally understood definition of ‘investment grade’. The Bank does not apply the low credit risk
exemption to any other financial instruments. B o T :

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from defanlt events on a financial instrument that are possible
within the 12 months after the reporting date. Financial instruments for which a 12-month ECL is recognised
are referred to as ‘Stage | financial instruments’. E T R
Life-time ECL are the ECL that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial
instrument. Financial instruments for which a lifetime ECL is recognised but which are not credit-impaired are
referred to as ‘Stage 2 financial instruments’. - '

Measurement of ECL
ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows:

e financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Bank expects to receive) and with different PDs for 12 month and for lifetime
expected credit losses;

e financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,

o undrawn loan commitments: as the present value of the difference between the contractual cash flows
that are due to the Bank if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that the Bank expects to
receive; and

financial guarantee contracts: the expected payments to reimburse the holder less any amounts that the Bank
expects to TCCOVEL.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
¢} Financial instruments {continued)

Restructured financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financial asset is replaced with a new
otic due to financial difficulties of the borrower, then an assessment is made of whether the financial asset should
be derecognised and ECL are measured as follows. .

 Ifthe expected restructuring will not result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected cash
flows arising from the medified financial asset are included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the
existing asset

o Ifthe expected restructuring will result in derccognition of the existing asset, then the fair vale of the
new -asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial asset at the time of its
derecognition. This amount is included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the existing financial asset
that are discounted from the expected date of derecognition to the reporting date using the original
effective interest rate of the existing financial asset. SRR T

Credit impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Bank assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost and debt financial
assets carried at FYOCI, and finance lease receivables are credit-impaired (referred to as *Stage 3 financial
assets’), A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. : o BRI

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Bank on terms that the Bank would not consider otherwise;
it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or
the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

e & o ©o @

A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower’s condition is usually considered 1o be
credit-impaired unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has reduced
significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment. In addition, a retail loan that is overdue for 90
days or more is considered credit-impaired even when the regulatory definition of default is different.

In making an assessment of whether an investment in sovereign debt is credit-impaired, the Bank considers the
following factors.

e The market’s assessment of creditworthiness as reflected in the bond yields.

¢ The rating agencies’ assessments of creditworthiness.

® The country’s ability to access the capital markets for new debt issuance.

¢ The probability of debt being restructured, resulting in holders suffering losses through voluntary or
mandatory debt forgiveness.

 The international support mechanisms in place to provide the necessary support as ‘lender of last resort’
to that country, as well as the intention, reflected in public statements, of governments and agencies to
use those mechanisms. This includes an assessment of the depth of those mechanisms and, irrespective
of the political intent, whether there is the capacity to fulfil the required criteria.
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3. Significant accounting policies {continued)
¢) Financial instruments (continued)

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of “financial position
Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

e financial assets measured at amortized cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the
assets;

loan commitments and financial guaraniee contracts: generally, as a provision;

e where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn componeni, and the Bank cannot
identify the ECL on the loan commitment component separately from those on the drawn component.
the Bank presents a combined Joss allowance for both components. The combined amount is presented

- as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the drawn component. Any excess of the loss
allowance over the gross amount of the drawn component is presented as a provision, and '

o debt instruments measured at FYOCI: no loss allowance is recognized in the statement of financial
position because the carrying amount of these assets is their fair value. However, the loss allowance is
disclosed and is recognized in the fair value reserve. o

Write-off

Loans and debt securitics are written off (either partiaily or in full) when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case when the Bank
determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. This assessment is carried out at the individual asset level.

Non-integral financial guarantee coniracts

The Bank assesses whether a financial guarantee contract held is an integral element of a financial asset that is
accounted for as a component of that instrument or is a contract that is accounted for separately. The factors
that the Bank considers when making this assessment include whether: E

the guarantee is implicitly part of the contractual terms of the debt instrument,

the guarantee is required by Jaws and regulations that govern the coniract of the debt instrument;

the guarantee is entered into at the same time as and in contemplation of the debt instrument; and

the guarantee is given by the parent of the borrower or another company within the borrower’s group.

* & & @

If the Bank determines that the guarantee is an integral element of the financial asset, then any premium payable
in connection with the initial recognition of the financial asset is treated as a transaction cost of acquiring it.
The Bank considers the effect of the protection when measuring the fair value of the debt instrument and when

measuring ECL.
If the Bank determines that the guarantee is not an integral element of the debt instrument, then it recognises an
assel representing any prepayment of guarantee premium and a ight to compensation for credit losses. A prepaid

premium asset is recognised only if the guaranteed exposure neither is credit-impaired nor has undergone a
significant increase in credit risk when the guarantee is acquired. These assets are recognised in ‘other assets’.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
f) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include notes and coins on hand, unrestricted balances held with central banks and
highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Bank in the management of its
short-term commitments. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortized cost. :

g) Loans and advances
‘Loans and advances’ captions in the statement of financial position include:

¢ loans and advances measured at amortized cost; they are initially measured at fair value plus incremental
direct transaction costs, and subsequently at their amortized cost using the effective interest method;
e loans and advances mandatorily measured at FVTPL or designated as at FVTPL (see J(ii)); these are
measured at fair value with changes recognized immediately in profit or loss; and
- finance lease receivables ' - S ' :

When the Bank purchases a financial asset and simultancously enters into an agreement fo resell the asset {or a
substantially similar asset) at a fixed price on a future date (reverse repo or stock borrowing), the arrangement
is accounted for as a loan or advance, and the underlying asset is not recognized in the Bank’s financial
statements. N - R B

k) Investment securities
The ‘investment securities’ caption in the statement of financial position includes:

e debt securities measured at FVOCI

For debt securities measured at FVOCI, gains and losses are recognized in OCI, except for the following, which
are recognized in profit or loss in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortized cost;

¢ interest revenue using the effective interest method,
e ECL and reversals; and
o foreign exchange gains and losses,

When debt security measured at FVOCI is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. O '

i) Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment,
if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items of property
and equipment,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Bank and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to other operating
expenses during the financial period in which they are incurred.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events change or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indications exist and where
the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash-generating units are written
down to their recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of property and equipment is the greater of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the assets,
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3. Significant accounting policies {continued)
i) Property and equipment (continued)

For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash flows, the recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Land and assets under construction are not depreciated. Depreciation of assets is charged on a straight-line basis
at prescribed rates to allocate the cost of property and equipment over their estimated useful lives. The annual
depreciation rates are determined by the estimated useful lives of certain assets as presented below

Usedul life - Lo Useful life

Co21 2020

Buildings o o -
Ieasehold Improvement Shorter of lease term or Shorter of lease term or
useful life : _useful life

Computers and related equipment _ S years _ 5 years
Motor vehicles o _ 5 years - 5Syears
Furniture, fixtures and equipment ' 5 years S Syears

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included
in other income or other operating expenses (as appropriate) in profit or loss. R A

i) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognised if it is probable that the future econotnic benefits that are attributable fo the
agset will flow to the Bank and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are measured
initially at cost. The carrying values of intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes

in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Intangible assets are entirely
comprised of computer software which is amortised using the straight-line method over their estimated usetul
tife of five years. ' - SRR o S

k) Leases

The Bank has applied IFRS 16 using the cumulative catch-up approach and therefore comparative information
has not been restated and is presented under TAS 17. The details of accounting policies under both IAS 17 and
IFRS 16 are presented separately below. " L :
Policies applicable from 1 January 2020

The Bank assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Bank recognises a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the
lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low
value assets, For these leases, the Bank recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined,
the lessee uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Iease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

) Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;
° Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate
at the commencement date;
) The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;
. The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and
e Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to

terminate the lease.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
k) Leases (continued)
The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments
made, The Bank remeasures the lease ._liabiii_t_y (and make_s_a_ corresponding adjustment_to the related right-of-
use asset) whenever: T : s
e The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a
change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate. e
© - The lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a
guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a
floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used). o PR
e Alease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which
case the lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification. o o

The Bank did not make any such adjustments during the periods presented.

_The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments
made at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. They

are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. _
Whenever the Bank incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on
which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, a provision is recognised and measured under IAS 37. To the extent that the costs relate o a right-of-use
asset, the costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories, B B
Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.
If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Bank
expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the
underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease,

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the statement of financial position.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability
and the right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers those payments occurs.

As a practical expedient, IFRS 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and instead account
for any lease and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement. The Bank has not used this practical
expedient. For a contracts that contain a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Bank allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the
relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
k) Due from other banks

Amounts due from other banks are recorded when the Group advances money to counterparty banks with no
intention of trading the resulting unquoted non-derivative receivable due on fixed or determinable dates.
Amounts due from other banks are carried at amortised cost.

1) Deposits and Due to related parties’ banks

Deposits and due to related parties’ banks are the Bank’s main sources of debt funding. -

When the Bank sells a financial asset and simultaneously enters into an agréement 10 repurchase the asset (or a
similar asset) at a fixed price on a future date (sale and repurchase agreement), the arrangement is accounted for
as a deposit, and the underlying asset continues to be recognised in the Bank’s financial statements.

Deposits and due to related parties banks are initially measured at fair value minus incremental direct transaction
costs, and subsequently measured at their amortised cost using the effective interest method.

m) Provisions

A provision is recognised if; as a result of a past event, the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. 'The
unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. -

n) Employee benefits

The Bank pays only contributions to the publicly administered pension plan on a mandatory basis. The Bank
has no further payment obligations once the coniributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due. The Bank calculated and provided provision for staff leave
untaken by the end of the reporting period. o L . .

o) Financial guarantees and loan commitments

‘Financial guarantees’ are contracts that require the Bank to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss that if incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when it is due in accordance with the

terms of a debt instrument. ‘Loan commitments’ are firm commitments {o provide credit under pre-specified
terms and conditions. s SR
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
p) Share capital

(i} Share issue costs

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

(ii} Share premium

Share premium represents the excess of contribution received over the nominal value of shares issued.

(iii) Dividends on ordinary shares

Dividends on ordinéry shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are approved by the Bank’s

shareholders. Dividends for the year that are declared after the reporting date are disclosed as events after the
end of the reporting period.

n. Comparatives

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with changes in presentation for the
current year for cash flow purposes. - : :

4. Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards

a) Adoption of new and revised standards
i} Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period

The Bank has adopted all of the new or amended Accouniing Standards and Interpretations issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board ('IASB') that are mandatory for the current reporting period. The
adoption of these standards and interpretation had no significant impact in Banks financial statements, - -

The following new standards and amendments became effective as at 1 Janvary 2021:
*  COVID-19-related rent concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (Amendments to IFRS 16)
*  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, 1FRS 4 and IFRS 16)

ii) Standards and interpretations in issue not yet effective

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Bank
financial statements are disclosed below. The Bank intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they
become effective.

e IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” including amendments to IFRS 17 {effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023),

¢ Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts { Amendments to [FRS 17 and IFRS 4)

e References to the Concepiual Framework

¢ Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to 1AS 16)

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract {Amendments to IAS 37)

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle (Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9,

IFRS 16, 1AS 41)

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments to IAS 1)

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities from a Single Transaction

The Bank anticipates that the adoption of these standards, revisions and interpretations will have no material
impact on the financial statements of the Bank in the peried of initial application.
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5. Critieal accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The Bank makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(a) Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment in the subsequent years is set out below: ' B T S I R

(i) Impairment charge for credit losses .

The Bank reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment on a monthly basis on a quarterly basis. In determining
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in profit or loss, the Bank makes judgments as to whether there
is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
portfolio of loans before the decrease can be identified with an individual loan in that portfolio. This evidence
may include observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers
in a group, or national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaulis on assets in the Bank.
Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and
objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience. Lol
Based on management’s assessment, the COVID 19 pandemic has not significantly impacted the carrying amount
of the bank’s loans and advances as at December 31, 2021 and the Loan loss provision recorded as at December 31,
2021 is appropriate. - ' S
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6. Financial risk management

The Bank’s activities expose it to a varfety of risks and those activities invelve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Takmg risk is core to the financial
business, and the operational risks are an inevitable consequence of bemg in business. The Bank’s aim is
therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and minimize potential adverse effects on
the Bank’s financial perfonnance :

The Bank’s risk management policies are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk
limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and adherence (o limits by means of reliable and up-to-date
information systems. The Bank regularly reviews its risk management pohmes and systems to reflect changes
in markets, products and emerging best practice. Sl

Risk management is carried out pnmanly by the Risk Monitoring Function and Credit Risk Department that
work under the risk management policies approved by the Board of Directors, The Board provides written
principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as, credit risk,
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and lquidity risk. In addition, mternal audlt is responsﬁ:le for the
independent review of risk management and the control environment, : : s .

.a)_ . Credit risk

The Bank takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that counterparty will cause a financial loss for the
Bank by failing to discharge an obligation. Credit risk is pervasive to the Bank’s business; management therefore
carefully manages its exposure to credit risk. Credit exposures arise principally in lending activities that lead to
loans and advances, and investment activities that bring placements and debt securities into the Bank’s asset
portfolio. : -

There is also credit risk in off-balance sheet financial instruments, such as letters of credit, guarantees and credit
commitments. The credit risk management and control for loans and advances are centralized in the credit risk
management department, while the interbank risk for placements and debt securities are concentrated in the
Treasury Unit and Risk Monitoring Function. All departments responsible for credit risk management and
control, report to the Management Board and to the Board of Directors, regularly.

(i) Analysis of credit quality

The tables below set out information about the credit quality of financial assets and the allowance for
impairment/loss held by the Bank against those assets.

The table represents a worst case scenario of credit risk exposure of the Bank at December 31, 2021 and 2020,
without taking into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements attached. For financial assets, the
exposures set out below represent the net carrying amounts as reported in the statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2021

(Al amounts expressed in EUR, unless otherwise stated)

6. Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued)
i) Analysis of credit quality fcontinued)

Cash and balances with banks

Cash and current account with banks are neither past due nor impaired and are not collateralised. The credit
quality of cash and balances with central banks is provided below. Kosovo Central Bank and Kosovo

Government are not provided with a rating by recognised rating agencies.

At December 31
2021 2020
AA+to AA- - .
A+ to A- - -
BB+ to B- 11,135,702 729,050
BBEB+ to B- - -
Not Rated - -
Local Banks 7,336,043 8,404,658
18,471,745 9,133,708
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in EUR, unless otherwise stated)

6. Financial risk management (continued)

{a) Credit risk (continued)
(i Analysis of credit quality (continued)

Impairment and provisioning

The Bank’s policy requires the review of individual financial assets that are above materiality thresholds at least
annually or more regularly when individual circumstances demand it. Impairment allowances on individually
assessed exposures are determined by an evaluation of the incurred loss at the reporting date on a case-by-case
basis, and are applied to all individually significant exposures. The assessment normally encompasses collateral
held (including re-confirmation of its enforceability) and the anticipated receipts for that individual account.
The collective assessment of the impairment of a group of financial assets is based on a quantifative analysis of
historical default rates for loan portfolios with similar credit risk characteristics. The quantitative default rates
calculated in this manner were subjected to a qualitative analysis (migration analysis).

The bank uses expected loss impairment model which requires recognition of expected credit losses in a timely
manner to ensure that the amount of expected credit losses recognised at each reporting date reflects the chan ges
in the credit risk of the financial instruments. The model is forward-looking and it replaces the incurred loss
model for recognition of credit losses, by recognising credit losses not necessarily triggered by a potential loss
event. :

Specifically, the model addresses the IFRS 9 requirements on measurement of expected credit losses based on
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical,
current and forecasted information.

This model outlines three stages based on changes in the exposure’s credit risk since the date of initial
recognition.

Stage I includes exposures that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that
have low credit risk at the reporting date, including those that transfer back from Stage I due to decrease in
credit risk. For these exposures, one-year expected credit losses are recognised in the profit or loss and a loss
allowance is established. One-year expected losses refer to the expected credit losses that result from default
events possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Stage 2 includes exposures that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition (unless
they have low credit risk at the reporting date). For these assets, lifetime expected losses are recognised. Lifetime
expected losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life
- maturity of a loan.

Stage 3 includes exposures that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date. For these assets,
lifetime expected losses are recognised and interest revenue is calculated on the amortized cost.

Write-off policy

The Bank writes off a loan/security balance (and any related allowances for impairment losses) when it is
determined that the loans/securities are uncollectible. This determination is reached after considering
information such as the occurrence of significant changes in the borrower/issuer’s financial position such that
the borrower/issuer can no longer pay the obligation, or that proceeds from collateral will not be sufficient to
pay back the entire exposure. The smaller the outstanding amount, the higher the number of days in arrears and
the greater the uncertainties surrounding recoveries (such as an unpredictable legal environment) are, the smaller
will be the chances of recovery by the Bank.
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6. Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)
(i) Analysis of credit quality (continued)

Lending commitments and financial guarantees
The maximum exposure from financial guarantees represents the maximum amount that the Bank would pay if

the guarantce is called on, which may be significantly greater than the amount recognized as a liability. The
maximum credit exposure for lending commitments is the full amount of the commitment (sec Note 26).

(ii) . Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Bank manages limits and controls the concentrations of credit risk wherever they are identified in particular
to individual counterparties and groups, and to affiliates, R .

The Bank structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in
relation to a single borrower, or group of borrowers, and to geographical and industry segments. Such risks are
monitored on a regular basis and are subject to an annual or more frequent review, if necessary. Limits on the
level of credit risk by product, region and industry sector are approved by the Board of Directors, o
Exposure to credit risk is also managed through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential
borrowers to meet interest and capital repayment obligations and by changing these lending limits where
appropriate. Other controls and mitigation measurcs are outlined below. S '

Collateral held and other credit enhancements, and their financial effect

The Bank employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk, the most common of which is the
security for fund advances. The Bank implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral
or credit risk mitigation. The principal collateral types for loans and advances are: - AR

. " Mortgages over residential properties; s R .
e Charges over business assets such as premises, equipment and inventory; and
) Charges over cash and cash equivalents (cash collateral). o

Loans to corporate entities and individuals are generally secured; private individual overdrafts and credit cards
issued to individuals are mainly unsecured. o '

In addition, in order to minimize the credit loss the Bank will seek additional collateral from the counterparty
as soon as impairment indicators are noted for the relevant individual loans and advances.

The financial effect of collateral is presented by disclosing collateral values separately for:

. those assets where collateral and other credit enhancements are equal to or exceed carrying value of the
asset (“over-collateralised assets™); and

- those assets where collateral and other credit enhancements are less than the carrying value of the asset
(“under-collateralised assets™).
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6. Financial risk management (continued)
{(a) Credit risk (continued)
(i} Risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued)

Collateral held and other credit enhancements, and their financial effect (continued)

2021 2020

Loans and FV of Loans and FV of
advances to advances to : '
collateral collateral
o : customers SRR customers R
Mortgages 23,141,576 144,067,153 39,765,739 137,692,595
Cash collateral 705,052 1,572,101 _2,458,254 © 921,508
Pledge 23,097,846 96,628,709 8,963,130 34,249,845
Mixed (mortgages and _ 11,517,717 - 118,452,345 5,303,060 147,044,549
pledge) _ - P Saddiah
Noi collateralised 7,051,952 N . - -
Total © 65,514,143 360,720,308 56,491,092 - 319,908,497

The fair value of the collateral is evaluated by the Bank on an individual basis. The assessed values are generally
determined with reference to the market, Expected income from coliateral llquldatlon is a]so taken into account
in calculation of individual 1mpa1nnent prov1smn1ng

(iii) Concentration of credit risk

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in
the same geographical region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet
confractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.
Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Bank’s performance to developments affecting a particular
industry or geographical location,

Geographical sectors

The following table breaks down the Bank’s main credit exposure at their gross amount, as categorised by
geographical region as at December 31, 2021 and 2020. The Bank has allocated exposures to regmns based on
the country of domicile of its counterparties. :
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6. Financiai risk management (continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued)
(iii) Concentration of credit risk (continued)

The Bank monitors concentrations of credit risk by sector and by geographic focation. An analysis of
concentrations of credit risk at the reporting date is shown below:

Loans to customers Investments in Balances with banks
- ' securities - - and CBK
2021 2026 2021 2020 2021 2020

Concentration by sector SR R P .
Government - - 7,003,988 6,857,819 - -
Banks - - - - 18,444,070 9,120,027
Agriculture 485,350 547,203 - - - -
Construction 7.478,519 5,471,038 - - - -
Education and social work 761,312 646,784 - - - -
Electricity and related 10,256,881 12,098,861 - - - -
Individuals 2,212,990 1,417,833 - - - -
Manufacturing 14,086,560 8,951,818 - - - -
Services 7,302,257 6,969,572 - - - -
Trading 22,930,274 20,387,981 - - . .
Total : 65,514,143 56,491,092 7,003,986 6,857,819 18,444,070 9,120,027
Concentration by location '
Republic of Turkey - - - - 11,070,042 470,570
EU countries - - - - 48,958 257,367
Republic of Kesovo 65,514,143 56,491,092 7,003,986 6,857,819 7,325,070 8,392,090
Total 65,514,143 56,491,092 7,003,986 6,857,819 18,444,070 9,120,027

During year ended 31 December 2021 there was no issuance of “CBK Guideline on loan restructuring due to
COVID 19” the guidelines issued during 2020 ended on 30 September 2020.

31 December 2020
In accordance with “CBK Guideline on loan restructuring due to COVID 19 issued on 16th of March 2020

the Bank deferred loan instalment payments for up to 3 months for all customers who made a request (COVID
19-first phase). As of 31 December 2020, the outstanding balances of loans which were deferred in first phase
(for 3 months) amount to EUR 6,443,657.

In addition, CBK. issued a Guideline on loan restructuring due to COVID 19 on 8th of June 2020, based on
which the Organization restructured the loans for all customers who made a request allowing maturity extenston
up to 12 months (COVID 19 —second phase). As of 31 December 2020, the outstanding balances of loans which
were restructured in the second phase (for up to 12 months) amount to EUR 8,961,106,

(b} Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices, foreign exchange rates
and credit spreads (not relating to changes in the obligor’sfissuer’s credit standing) will affect the Bank’s income
or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on risk.

31



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in EUR, unless otherwise stated)

6. Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Market risk (continued)
{ Foreign currvency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value ofa financial instrament will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Bank does not aim to profit from speculative transactions. The Bank tries to keep its open foreign
currency position close to zero at all times. Open currency position limits and risk taking capacity for the Bank
are set by their respective policies, which are approved by the Board of Directors, and reviewed by the Risk
Monitoring Function. In addition regulatory limits are at all times adhered to by the Bank.

Treasury unit assesses foreign exchange rate developments with reference to all material currency positions.
Major changes in the structure of assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency and their impact are
reviewed before trades are executed by the bank’s treasury front office department. P
Treasury unit also observes the financial market and informs the Risk Monitoring Function regularly and in case
of significant developments that may influence the currency risk situation of the bank. :

Even though the bank aims to keep its currency position as close as possible to zero, there may be occasions
where the bank is still affected by unpredicted volatility of exchange rates. Therefore, the Risk Monitoring
Function performs stress tests and reports the effects in P&L of the bank on monthly basis. ISR

Official exchange rates for major currencies used in the translation of the balance sheet items denominated in
foreign currencies were as follows (in EUR): :

: 2021 2020
Currency EUR EUR
1USD 0.88 0.81
i CHF 0.97 0.93
1 GBP 1.19 L.11
1 TRY o 0.07 0.11

The following tables summarise the assets and liabilities of the Bank denominated in foreign currencies as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020 as translated into EUR.
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6. Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Market risk (continued)
(i) Foreign currency risk (continued)

December 31, 2021 EUR USb CHF GBP TRY Total
Cash on hand and at 11,821,432 169858 55428 4,364 2 12,051,084
Balances with CBK 7,065,869 - - - - 7,065,869
Loans (o customers 65,514,143 - - - - 65,514,143
Investments in 7,003,986 . : S . 7,003,986
securities . :
Other assets 252,113 - - - - 252,113
91,657,543 169,858 55,428 4,364 2 91,887,195
Liabilities
Due to customers 69,652,163 214,557 3473 - - 69,870,193
Due to banks 4,034,370 - - - - 4,034,370
Due to related parties’
banks 9,544,738 - - - - 9,544,738
Other liabilities 118,283 - - - - 118,283
Lease liabilities 786,856 - - - - 786,856
84,136,410 214,557 3,473 - - 84,354,440
Net foreign currency 7,521,133 (44,699) 51,955 4,364 2 7,532,755
position
December 31, 2020 EUR USD CHF GBP TRY Total
Cash on hand and at banks 1,774,587 41,624 52,930 4,079 163 1,873,383
Balances with CBK 8,097,791 - - - - 8,097,791
Loans fo customers 56,491,092 - - - - 56,491,092
Investments in securities 6,857,819 - - - - 6,857,819
Other assets 283,608 - - - - 283,608
73,504,897 41,624 52,930 4,079 163 73,603,093
Liabilities
Due to customers 58,416,632 63,477 3,343 - - 58483452
Due to banks 2,459,655 - - - - 2,459,655
Due to related parties banks 4,552,724 - - - - 4,552,724
Other liabilities 112,405 - - -C - 112,405
65,541,416 63,477 3,343 - - 65,608,236
Net foreign currency 7963481  (21,853) 49,587 4,079 163 7,995457
position

The table below summarises the sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk and the effect on the profit or loss
and net equity of the Bank net of tax:

Effect on profit or loss and net equity
Increase 2021 Tncrease 2020  December 31,2021  December 31, 2020

UsDh 10% 10% {(4,470) 2
Other 10% 10% 5,632 42
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6. Financial risk management (continuned)

(b) Market risk (continued)
(ii}  Interest rate visk

The Bank is exposed to various risks associated with the effects of fluctuations of market interest rates on its
financial position and cash flows. The Bank does not aim to earn profits through excessive maturity
transformation, or other forms of speculations in the interest rate market. Instead, the Bank seeks to ensure that
the structure of assets and liabilities is balanced across all maturities.

The following table provides an analysis of the Bank’s interest rate risk exposure on non—trading financial assets

and liabilities. The Bank’s assets and liabilities are included at carrying amount and categorised by the earlier
of contractual repricing or maturity dates.

34



SE

- SSLTESL TITOLY ST BP9’ (P1H76T°8)  016°07€°C 890°611°7 POE'CO8' L de3 sapemumn)
SSLizes'L (LSE'Ewe’L)  0SS'0v9°91 GFeeo’tny  wsi0Tl POLCTE yOE'€08°T dexny
OFPPSEP8  PSSOPTOT B9OL£S8E OSTIZLYT  TPTEECEE  T1SO'8ST - 960°01S'S fe1oL
058°98L - LED09T 3EC°LOY 187611 - - - SABIQET] 358ST
£8T°RIT €RT/I1L - - - - - - $IUIGEL] BYIO
< . - - _ < ‘ _ - c < el
8ELPYS 6 000°SE0°S 8€L60S Y poxy — Seq sored pajelal 0} o]
QLEPEDY - - 655°20€ LIS IELE - - - syueg 01 In(]
E6T°0L869  1LT'8TI0T  1g€'STl CEETIOVT  6V89FFYT  1S0°8SI 8SE°000°1 ajel PaXI] — SIWOIST)) 0F (]
sapmiqery
S6I°L88'T6 LO6I'EOETT  8I6STOLT  90T6PSIE LISGILIC  £68°6SE°T P9LSTE 00" EIE L e1o]
€11°Z5T €11°28T - - - EE - SJOSSE I3YI0)
986°C00°L - - 19L°7T9€°S  1€6°6%7 SOROFI‘l 62V 15T - o1el XY - SOHLINOAS UL SIUSULSIAL]
sPIpISsy - QIESTOLT  SHHL8F'9T  988°69%'IC  RTO6IT SEEPY 1€5°242 9)e1 PIXIJ - SISWOISTO 0} SUBO']
698°650°L - - - - - - 698°C90°L gD Pl saouR[Eg
PRO‘TISOTT  #ROTISOTI - - - - - - SYUBQ 8 PUB PURY GO YSB)
§)OSSY

supiEaq SIBIA
Ll :Mwm_w ¢ 1A0 SIEdf G- SPUOW T[- ¢ SPUOWI 9-¢ SPUOWE-T  SLEP O£ - [ 1707 IS 12quIs0s(

, .m&m:mouﬁﬁvoxm
-UoU puB Paxij Yioq Ylim SSLI[ERI] PUE S}OSSE AIBISUOW S NUBg 9t SJB $I[qQE] U1 Ul Papn|ou] "sYSL S1el }SaISUL 0] 2InsodXs s juey U SZLIBUILNS MO[3q $I[qel Y[,

(Panuipuod} ySit 2304 JSa423U 1)

(ponunuod) ysu PYIE  {(qQ)
(panunuod) JUWISENEW Y51 [EPUBTLY

9

(pajE1s 9SIAIAN]0 SSA[UN Y1 W Passasdxa sjunowe fy)

TZ0Z ‘TE Jaquuadaq papua Jeal ayj 404
SINHINHLY.LS TVIONVNIA HH.E OL SHLON



9t

- LSP'S66'L 768°918°07 965 119 (08F'P9S'IT) 0€9°S8S'Y  SVLPIFT  LSSPOV'T ded sapemunyy
LSY'S66°L (LEVITRTI) 867°SOTOT 9LO'OLY T1 C(OTTOSH'ED) - (STI'678) 8886 LSS'POF'T desy
9€7°809°S9 HIT'SII'ST  ZEp'STI S8LLIS Y LOP'B6T 6T  0ST°S66 - EPI'ESS’S Q0L
SOFTIT  SOYZIT - - - - - - SOTITIQET] 930
4 & - - - - - - 3 4 DMM.H
PILISS Y PTLTSS'Y paxyj — syueq soned pare[aI o 9y
S59°6S¥'C - - 060°88¢ SPIS0°T  0TI0T - - s;med o) on(g
TSY'E8Y'8S PIR'CO0'ST TEp'sTl $69°6T1'v1 T96°9%T LT 0E1SLE - 611°000°1 1Bl paXY] — SIBW0ISNY) 0} A
_ sonIIqery
|E69°€09'EL TBL96T'T  DEL0OEE0T 198°€669T L6TSYR'ST  SET°991 888°6 000°856'L [BI0L
809°€87  809°¢8T - : - - - - - §19858 19710
60° 16798 - 0L 00T THO'9E1°0T LOT8F]ST  SEI‘991 8886 - SJBX PIXY - SAULINOSS UL $YUIUSIAT]
618°LS8D - - 618°L58°9 - - - - 911 PIXIJ - SIOWOISTIO 0 SURO']
I6L°L60°8  16L°6E1 - - - - - 000°8S6°L 9D | seoue[ey
£8C'ELBT  £8¢°CL8°] - - - - - - S{Ueq Je pUEB pUBy uo ysey)
S}O88V

0L w“ﬂoﬁm SABIA € 394 SIBIA G ~ syow sppuow Stpuow sABp 0 - 1
m “mo TRLETA0 sl -9 9-¢ €1 P 0T0T ‘1€ 1equad(
(PERUIUOD) YSLE 2104 1SOLDIU] (1)
(ponupmod) ysui HIEIN  (q)
(PoNUN o)) JUIMASBUL UL HSLI [EIOURT] XY

{paje)s AsIMIYI0 SSI[UT W) Ul passaadxo syunowe [Ty)

TZ0T ‘TE 19qwiadaq papus teak ayl 104

SINHAHLVLS TVIONVNIA HHIL OL SALON



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in EUR, unless otherwise stated)

6. Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Market risk (continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk (continued)

USD EUR CHF

Assets 2021 2020 2021 2029 2021 2020
Cash on hand and at banks . - -
Balances with CBK - - -
Loans to customers 6.10% 6.11% -
Investmeni securities 147% 1.64% -
Liabilities ' 3
Customer deposits 2.22% 1.5%% -
Due to related parties banks 1.68% -

1.11%

The management of interest rate risk against interest rate gap lmits is supplemented by monitoring the
sensmwty of the Bank’s financial assets and liabilities to various standard and non—standard interest rate

scenarios. Standard scenarios include a 1% parallel fall or nse in alf yield curves.
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6. Financial risk management {continued)
(¢) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will no longer be able to meet its current and future payment obligations
in full, or in a timely manner. The Bank must therefore maintain at all times sufficient liquid funds available to
meet its obligations, even in view of potential extraordinary circumstances. Liquidity risk is also the risk that
additional funding can no longer be obtained, or can only be obtained at increased market interest rates. [t can
be cavsed by market disruptions or credit downgrades which may cause certain sources of funding to become
unavailable. To mifigate liquidity risk, the Bank diversifies funding sources and manages the assets with
liquidity caution, maintaining a balance of cash and cash equivalents sufficiently enough to meet immediate
liability calls, '

The table below presents the liquidity analysis of undiscounted remaining contractual maturities at the reporting
date grouped by expected maturities of the financial assets and liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the first part
of the table are contractual discounted cash flows, whereas the Bank manages the inherent liquidity risk on an
expected basis, based on expected undiscounted cash inflows and outflows reported on the second part.

The Bank aims to keep the expected cumulative maturity gap positive at all times. Should the expected
cumulative maturity gap be negative not positive the Bank considers the liquidity as a “watch liquidity position”.

The figures reported on the reporting tool below do not match with the statement of financial position figures,
which is due to the fact that apart from on-balance positions the Bank has taken into consideration the off-
balance sheet positions as well. All financial assets and liabilities are reported based on the timing when
liabilities (including contingent liabilities from Bank’s guarantees and letters of credit and other credit related
commitments) become due and assets can be used as repayment source (including the off balance sheet items
like unused irrevocable and unconditional credit commitments which the Bank can use as liquidity source at
anry time without a prior approval).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2021
(All amounts expressed in EUR, unless otherwise stated)

6. Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

For liquidity purposes the Bank classifies demand and saving deposits as due on demand and maturing within
one month. As a result, the contractual liquidity gap of up to twelve months is increased. However, the
possibility that large amounts of customer deposits will leave the Bank is very unlikely. Therefore the Bank
does not consider having the liquidily gap in short term. It rather focuses on expected maturity gap which
represents a more likely scenario. The Bank is maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable financial assets
(available for sale financial assets) that can easily be liquidated as protection against any unforeseen interruption
to cash flow. The management of the Bank is monitoring liquidity ratios against internal and regulatory
requirements on a daily, weekly and monthly basis, As a result, Management believes that the Bank has no short
term liquidity gap. During 2021, the Bank applied liquidity stress testing on a quarterly basis for alt operating
currencies and discussed it regularly in the Rank’s Financial and Market Risk Management Committee and
ALCO. The stress test is performed applying four different scenarios as per Liquidity Risk Management policy,
starting from less to more conservative scenarios. In case the Management Board and Risk Monitoring Function
see any concerns under these scenarios, the Bank takes the necessary measures to minimise any risk.

(d) Capital management risk

The Bank manages its capital to ensure that the Bank will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximizing the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. '

The equity structure of the Bank comprises share capital, reserves and retained earnings.

Regulatory capital

The Bank manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the
return to shareholders through the optimization of the debt and equity. The Bank's overall strategy remains
unchanged from previous year. In accordance with the regulations of the Central Bank of Republic of Kosovo,
the Bank should maintain a capital equivalency deposit of not less than EUR 7,000,000. The Bank monitors the
adequacy of its capital using, among other measures, the rules and ratios established by the Central Bank of
Kosovo (“CBK"). The Bank has met the regulatory requirements as at 31 December 2021 and 2020, '

6. Financial risk management (continued)

(e) Capital management risk

Gearing ratio

The Bank’s risk management committee reviews the capital structure on a continuously basis. As part of this
review, the committee considers the cost of capital and the risk associated with cach class of capital. Based on
the CBK regulations, the minimum leverage ratio is 7%.

The leverage ratio at the year ended was as follows:
2021 2020
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Total Assets 93,851,082 75,446,294

Total Equity 9,496,642 8,931,868

Leverage ratio 10.12% 11.84%
(f) Risk bearing capacity

In addition to regulatory capital ratios, the Bank assesses its capital adequacy by using the concept of risk

bearing capacity to reflect the specific risk profile of the Bank, i.c. comparing the potential losses arising from

its operation with the Bank’s capacity to bear such losses. The following concepts were used to calculate
potential losses in the different risk categories: -

e - -Credit risk (clicnts): Based on a regularly updated migration analysis on the loan portfolio, the historical

“loss rates and their statistical distribution is calculated. The historical loss rates in different arrears
categories (at a 95% confidence level) are applied to the loan portfolio to calculate potential loan losses.

® Counterparty risk: The calculation of potential losses due to counterparty risk is based on the probability
of default arising from the respective international rating of the counterparty or its respective country of
operation (after adjustment).

e  Marketrisks: Whereas historical currency fluctuations are statistically analysed and highest variances (99%
confidence 1evel) are applied to current currency positions, interest rate risk is calculated by determining
the economic value impact of a standard interest rate shock for EUR/USD (2 percentage pomts Basel
interest rate shock) and higher (historical) shock levels for other currencies.

o  Operational risk: The Basel II Standard approach is used to calculate the respective value.

7. Fair values of financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities that are traded in active markets are based on quoted
market prices or dealer price quotations. For all other financial instruments, the Bank determines fair values
using other valuation techniques. For financial instruments that trade infrequently and have little ‘price
transparency, fair value is less objective, and requires varying degrees of judgement depending on liquidity,
concentration, uncertainty of market factors, pricing assumptions and other risks affecting the specific
instrument.
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10. Loans and advances to customers (continued)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI
12-month  Lifetime Lifetime P“c‘;‘;':]?ts_ed Total
ECL ECL ECL , impaired
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR

Amount of the provision as at 1 January 2021 244,519 102,245 164,185 - 510,949
Movements with impact in P&l
Transfers: - - - - -

Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (311,895) 311,895 - - -

Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (117,689) - 117,689 - -

Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 25,755 (25,755) - - -

Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - 78,0 69— 78,069 - -

Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1 - - - _ - -

Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 11,359 (11,359) - -
New financial assets originated or purchased 790,342 171,609 - - 961,951
Changes in Risk Parameters (PD/LGD/EAD) 13,439 (102,245) 7,907 - (107,776)
Changes in Models - - - . -
Modification of contractual cash flows - - - L. -
Unwind of discount - - - - -
Write-offs - - - - -
FX and other movements - - - - -
Net provision value for the period 373,075 288,794 192,306 o 854,175
Amount of the provision as at 31 December 2021 617,594 391,039 - 356,491 - 1,365,124

The following tables set out the changes in gross carrying amount and atlowances loans at amortised cost for
the year ended 31 December 2020:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI
12-month Lifetime  Lifetime ?urchs‘tsed
ECL ECL gcL | Cred Total
- impaired
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 2020 42,517,270 1,898,528 85,801 - 44,501,599
Transfers:
Transfer from Stage | to Stage 2 (3,201,801) 3,201,801 - - -
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (45,518) - 45,518 . -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 1,640,297  (1,640,297) - - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - {21,365) 21,365 - -
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage | - - - - -
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - - - - -
gi:g‘:ﬁfg:é;‘?;s derecognised during the period other 13 756 933y (1 895,529) 47,255 . (15,605,107)
New financial assets originated or purchased 25,874,691 2,230,858 - - 28,105,549
Modification of contractual cash flows - - - - -
Write-offs - - - - -

FX and other movements - - - - .
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Gross carrying amount as at 31 December 2020 53,028,106 3,773,996 199,939 - 57,002,041

10. Loans and advances to customers (continued)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI
12-month  Lifetime  Lifetime | “rehased
ECL ECL ECL credit- Total
impaired
EUR’000 EUR000 EUR’000 EUR000 EUR000

Amount of the provision as at 1 January 2020 287,828 148,266 30,007 - 472,101

Movements with impact in P&,

Transfers: - - - - -
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (77,604) 77,604 - - -
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 {40,156) - 40,156 - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage | 6,570 (6,570) - - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - {17,224) 17,224 - -
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1 - - - - -
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - - - - -

New financial assets originated or purchased 220,835 48,436 - - 269,271

Changes in Risk Parameters (PD/LGD/EAD) (152,954) (148,267) 70,798 - (230,423)

Changes in Models - - - - -

Modiication of contractual cash flows - - - - -

Unwind of discount - - - - .

Write-offs - - - - -

FX and other movements - - - - -

Net provision value for the period ' (43,309 (46,021} 128,178 - 38,848

Amount of the provision as at 31 December 2020 244,519 102,245 164,185 - 510,949

The movements in the impairment allowances for loan losses at December 31, 2021 were as follows:

2021 2020
Allowance for impairment at January 1 510,949 472,101
Loans written off - -
Recoveries of loans previously written off - -
Charge for the year 854,175 38,848
Allowance for impairment at December 31 1,365,124 510,949
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7. Fair values of financial instruments (continned)

a) Valuation models

The Bank measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy, which reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measurements.

Level 1: inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical instruments.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices
in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are
considered less than active; or other valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly
observable from market data. e e R

Level 3; inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the valuation technique
includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the
instrument’s valuation, This category includes instruments that are vahied based on quoted prices for similar
instraments for which significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences
between the instruments.

Valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow models, comparison with similar
instruments for which market observable prices exist, a_nd_ other valuation models.

Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-free and benchmark dnterest rates, credit
spreads and other premiums used in estimating discount rates, bond and equity prices, foreign currency
exchange rates, equity and equity index prices and expected price volatilities and correlations. The objective of
valuation techniques is o arrive at a fair value measurement that reflects the price that would be received to sell
the asset or paid to transfer the liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. o ' ' -

The Bank uses widely recognized valuation models for determining the fair value of common and more simple
financial instruments, such as interest rate and currency swaps that use only observable market data and require
little management judgement and estimation. Observable prices or model inputs are usually available in the
market for listed debt and equity securities. Availability of observable market prices and model inputs reduces
the need for management judgement and estimation and also reduces the uncertainty associated with
determining fair values. Availability of observable market prices and inputs varies depending on the products
and markets and is prone to changes based on specific events and general conditions in the financial markets.

Fair value estimates obtained from models are adjusted for any other factors, such as liquidity risk or model
uncertainties, to the extent that the Bank believes that a third party market participant would take them into
account in pricing a transaction, Fair values reflect the credit risk of the instrument and include adjustments to

take account of the credit risk of the Bank entity and the counterparty where appropriate. _ :

Mode! inputs and values are calibrated against historical data and published forecasts and, where possible,
against current or recent observed (ransactions in different instruments and ‘against broker quotes. This
calibration process is inherently subjective and it yields ranges of possible inputs and estimates of fair value,
and management judgement is required to select the most appropriate point in the range.
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7. Fair values of financial instraments {confinued)

b) FKinancial instruments measured at fair value

The following table analyses financial instruments measured at fair value at the reporting date, by the level in
the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized. The amounts are based on the
values recognized in the statement of financial position. Fair value of investment securities is based on market
prices or broker/dealer price quotations. Where this information is not available, fair value has been estimated
using a discounted cash flow model based on a current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to
maturity, RREM AR . :

Investment Securities measured at . - . - Carrying  Fair Value Fair Value .-'Fair Value
FVOCI _ ' __amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
December 31, 2021 : ' .- 7,003,986 - 7,003,986 -
December 31, 2020 6,857,819 - 6,857,819 -

¢. Financial instraments not measured at fair value for which fair value is disclosed

The following table sets out the fair values of financial instruments not measured at fair value and analyses them
by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which each fair value measurement is categorized. - .

' Carrying value "~ 'Fair value

. e " ‘Level 2 ' Level 2

Assets 2021 2020 2021 2020

Cash on hand and at banks 12,051,084 1,873,383 12,051,084 1,873,383

-~ Balance with CBK . . 7,065,869 8,097,791 7,065,869 8,097,791
"Loans to customers 65,514,143 56,491,092 65,514,143 56,491,092 - -
~ Investments in securities - 7,003,986 6,857,819 . 7,003,986 - .6,857.819 .

Liabilities - S L

Due to customers 69,870,193 58,483,452 69,870,193 58,483,452

Due to banks 4,034,370 2,459,655 4,034,370 2,459,655

Due to related parties banks 9,544,738 4,552,724 9,544,738 4,552,724

Where available, the fair value of loans and advances is based on observable market transactions. Where
observable market transactions are not available then, fair value is estimated using fair value own model, such
as discounted cash flow technique. Input into the valuation technique includes expected lifetime credit losses,
interest rates and prepayment rates. For collateral-dependent impaired loans, the fair value is measured based
on the value of the underlying collateral. For retail and smaller commercial loans, homogeneous loans are
grouped into portfolios with similar characteristics. ' :

The fair value of deposits from banks and customers is estimated using discounted cash flow techniques,
applying the rates that are offered for deposits of similar maturities and terms. The fair value of deposits payable
on demand is the amount payable at the reporting date,

The fair value of borrowings and Due to related parties banks is based on discounted contractual cash flows,
taking into consideration market interest rates, which would have been payable by the Bank in need of replacing
the old sources with the new ones of equal remaining maturity.
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8. Cash on hand and at banks

Cash on hand

Current accounts with banks
Impairment allowance

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

Cash on hand and at banks
Balances with the CBK (Note 9)
Statutory reserves — DEK
Statutory reserves — 10% .

As at December 31,

As at December 31,

2021 2020
672,884 851,147
18,471,745 9,133,708
(27,675) (13,681)
19,116,954 9,971,174
As at Decemnber 31,  As at December 31,
2021 2620
12,051,084 1,873,383
7,065,869 7,958,000

- 139,791
(5,042,461) (5,187,001)
14,074,492 4,784,173

In accordance with the CBK requirements relating to the deposits reserve for liquidity purposes, the Bank should
maintain a minimum of 10% of customer deposits with maturities up to one year, as statutory rescrves. The
statutory reserves represent highly liquid instruments, including cash on hand, accounts at the CBK or at other
banks in Kosovo, and the amounts held at the CBK should not be less than half of the total statutory reserves.
The assets with which the Bank may satisfy its liquidity requirement are deposits in EUR with the CBK and
50% of the EUR equivalent of cash denominated in readily convertible currencies. Deposits with the CBK must

not be less than 5% of the applicable deposit base.

Movement in impairment for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, charged to profit and loss is as

following:

Opening balances
Charge/{release) to profit and loss

Closing balance

9, RBalances with the Central Bank of Kosovo

Statutory reserves with the CBK
Current account with CBK
Impairment allowance

2021 2020
13,681 16,727
13,994 (3,046)
27,675 13,681

As at December 31, |

As at December

2021 " 31,2020
5,042,461 5,187,001
2,033,993 2,922,018

(10,585) (12,128)
7,065,869 8,097,791
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14. Loans and advances fo customers

Loans
Overdraft facilities

Accrued interest
Deferred disbursement fees

Allowance for impairment
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3

As at December 31,

As at December 31,

Loans to customers

2021 2020
45,317,603 45,180,272
21,396,601 11,657,218
66,714,204 56,837,490

308,539 362,039
143,476 197,488
66,879,267 57,002,041
(617,594) (244,519)
(391,039) (102,245)
(356,491) (164,185)
(1,365,124) (510,949)
65,514,143 56,491,092

The following tables set out the changes m gross carrymg amount and allowances loans at amomsed cost for

the year ended 31 December 2021

3 POCI

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage
B ' T Purchas
12-month  Lifetime Lifetime = °%. .
ECL ECL pcL ~ credie Total
impaire
d
EUR000 EUR000 EUR’600 EUR060 EUR000

Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 2021 53,028,106 3,773,996 199,939 57,002,041
Transfers: .

Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (2,510,764} 2,510,764 - - -

Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (165,169} - 165,169 - -

Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 - 3,217,095 (3,217,095) - - -

Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (88,162) 88,162 - -

Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1 - - - - -

Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 21,432 (21,432) - -
ijg?g&z)igsassets derecognised during the period other than (28,671,017) (468,739) (15,357) . (29,155,113)
New financial assets originated or purchased 38,156,247 876,092 - - 36,032,339
Modification of contractual cash flows - - - - -
Write-offs - - - - -
FX and other movements - - - - -
Gross carrying amount as at 31 December 2021 63,054,498 3,408,287 416,482 - 60,879,267
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10. Loans and advances to customers (continued)

stated)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI
1Z-month  Lifetime Lifetime 1 urchased
ECL ECL ECL ] cred.1t~ Total
impaired
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
Amount of the provision as at | January 2021 244,519 102,245 164,185 - 510,949
Movements with impact in P&L
Transfers: - - - - -
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (311,895) 311,895 - - -
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (117,689) - 117,689 - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 25,755 (25,755) - - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - 78,0 65 o 78,(}_69_. : - -
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1 - - . - -
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 11,359 . (11,359) - -
New financial assets originated or purchased 790,342 171,609 R - 961,951
Changes in Risk Parameters (PD/LGD/EAD) 13,439 {102,245) 7,907 - (107,776)
Changes in Models - - - - -
Modification of contractual cash flows - - - - -
Unwind of discount - - - - -
Write-offs - - - - -
FX and other movements - - - - -
Net provision value for the period 373,075 288,794 :192,396 - 854,175
Amount of the provision as at 31 December 2021 617,594 391,039 356,491 - 1,365,124
The following tables set out the changes in gross carrying amount and allowances loans at amortised cost for
the year ended 31 December 2020
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI
12-month Lifetime  Lifetime Piii‘é?:_ed Total
ECL ECL ECL impaired
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 2020 42,517,270 1,898,528 85,801 - 44,501,599
Transfers:
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (3,201,801) 3,201,801 - - -
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (45,518) - 45,518 - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 1,640,297  (1,640,297) - - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (21,365) 21,365 - -
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1 - - - - -
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - - - . -
Financi?l assets derecognised during the period other (13,756.833)  (1,895,529) 47.255 - (15,605,107)
than write-offs
New financial assets originated or purchased 25,874,691 2,230,858 - - 28,105,549

Modification of contractual cash flows
Write-offs
FX and other movements
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Gross carrying amoun{ as at 31 December 2020 53,028,106 3,773,996 199,939 - 57,002,041

16. Loans and advances to customers (continued)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI
12-month  Lifetime Lifetime P“m'(‘l‘i‘fed Total
ECL ECL ECL erecit-
impaired

EUR000 EUR’000 EUR000 EUR'000 EUR’000
Amount of the provision as at | January 2020 287,828 148,266 36,007 - 472,101
Movements with impact in P&L

Transfers: - - - - -
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 {77,604) 77,604 - - -
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (40,156) - 40,156 - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 6,570 (6,570) - - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (17,224) 17,224 - -

Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1 - - - - -
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - - - . . -
New financial assets originated or purchased 220,835 48,436 - - 0269,271

Changes in Risk Parameters (PD/LGD/EAD) (152,954) (148,267) 70,798 - ' (230,423)
Changes in Models - - - - -

Modification of contractual cash flows - - - - -
Unwind of discount - - - ;. -

Write-offs - - - - -
FX and other movements - - - L -
Net provision value for the period ' (43,309) (46,021) 128,178 - 38,848
Amount of the provision as at 31 December 2020 244,519 102,245 164,185 - 510,949

The movements in the impairment allowances for loan losses at December 31, 2021 were as follows:

2021 2020
Allowance for impairment at January 1 510,949 472,101
Loans written off - -
Recoveries of loans previously written off - -
Charge for the year 854,175 38,848
Allowance for impairment at December 31 1,365,124 510,949
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11. Investment securities measured at FVOCIE

As at December 31, As at December 31,

2021 2020
Government Bonds 6,985,800 6,841,413
Accrued Interest 25,501 23,568
Impairment atllowance (7,315) {7,162)
Total 7,003,986 6,857,819

Movement in impairment for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 20_20, charpged to profit and loss is as
following: - - o

2021 2020
Opening balances 7,162 | 6,729
Charge to profit and loss 153 433
Closing balance 7,315 7,162

The following table provides for the movement of investment securities during 2021 and 2020:

U EVOCI

investments -

- - Nominal

At 01 January 2021 S ' - 6,860,000
Additions - ~ 1,340,000
Matured (1,200,000)
Unrealized gain/(loss) S
At 31 December 2021 7,000,000
At 01 January 2020 6,596,000
Additions 3,170,000
Matured (2,900,000}
Unrealized gain/(loss) -
At 31 December 2020 6,860,000
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For the year ended December 31, 2021
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13. Intangible assets

Fixed Assets — Intangible

At 1 January 2020
Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2020
Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2021

Accumulated amortization
At 1 Januwary 2020

Charge for the year

At 31 December 2020
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2021

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2020
At 31 December 2021

14. Right of Use Assets & Lease liability

Right of Use Asset

At January 1, 2020
Additions

Disposals

At December 31, 2020

Additions
Disposals
At 31 December 2021

Accumulated depreciation
At January 1, 2020
Charge for the year
Disposals

At December 31, 2020

Charge for the year
Disposals
At December 31, 2021

Net book value as at
December 31, 20206

Net book value as at
Pecember 31, 2021

Software Licenses Total
1,080,100 55,549 1,135,649
108,084 33,524 141,608
1,188,184 89,073 1,277,257
1,188,184 89,073 1,277,257
814,849 38,008 852,917
134,772 11,280 146,052
949,621 49,348 998,969
63,315 9,401 72,117
1,012,936 58,74_9 1,071,685
238,563 39,725 278,288
175,248 30,324 _ 205,572

332,508

754,251

1,086,759

1,086,759

112,747

75,876

188,623

134,520

323,143

898,136

763,616

51



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2021

(All amounts expressed in EUR, unless otherwise stated)

Lease Liability as at January 1, 2020 224,106
Additions 754,251
- Less lease payments (84,759)
+ Interest on Lease Liabilities 12,593
Lease liability as at December 31, 2020 906,191
Lease Liability as at January I, 2021 906,191
Additions -
- Less lease payments (161,934)
+ Interest on Lease Liabilities 42,599
Lease liability as at December 31, 2021 - 786,856

Maturity of lease liability at December 31 2020

Not later than one year T 119334
Later than one year and not later than ﬁve yeats. C 446,025
Later than five years 340,832
Total 906,191

Maturity of lease liability at December'Sl, 2021

Not later than one year 119,481
Later than one year and not later than five years. 407,338
Later than five years _ 260,037
Total 786,856
Amounts recognized in profit and loss 2021 2020
Depreciation expense on right-of-use-assets 134,520 " 75,876
Interest expense on lease liabilities 42,599 12,593
Expense relating to short-term leases 17,848 74,748
Total 194,967 163,217

The Bank leases several assefs which consist of premises. The average lease term is 5 years.

Total cash flow amount for leases amount to EUR 161,934 (2020: EUR 84,759). All lease payments are
fixed.

All lease obligations are denominated in currency units.
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15, Other assets

Prepayments
Other
Total

16. Due to customers

Time Deposits
Current accounts
Savings accounts
Accrued interest
Total

Current accounts are non-interest bearing,

As at December 31, As at December 31,
2021 2020

106,571 151,444

145,542 132,164

252,113 283,608

As at December 31,

As at December 31,

2021 /2020
49,021,901 42,933,228
18,403,040 13,308,721

1,725,230 1,697,091
720,022 544,412
69,870,193 58,483,452

The average effective interest rates for time deposits during 2021 and 2020 were as follows

Year ! month 6 months 1 year 18 months 2 -5 years
2021 0.90% 0.75% 2.16% 2.25% 2.40%
2020 0.90% 0.73% 2.14% 2.34% 2.34%
17. Due to banks and borrowers . _ R S
As at December 31, As at December 31,
2021 2020
Time Deposits 3,700,000 2,000,000
Borrowings from EXIM bank 300,281 454,027
Accrued interest 34,089 5,628
Total 4,034,370 2,459,655
18, Due to related parties banks
As at December 31, As at December 31,
2021 2020
Money market 9,500,000 4,550,000
Accrued Interest 44,738 2,724
Total 9,544,738 4,552,724

Due to related parties banks represents time deposits of other related banks/branches, part of the Ziraat Group.

These time deposits bear an average annual interest rate of 1.68% and have maturity during 2021.
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19. Other liabilities

As at December 31, As at December 31,

2021 2020

Accrued expenses 41,935 54,713
Other liabilities 58,300 49,216
Provision for losses from guarantees 18,048 8,476
Total 118,283 112,405

The movement in the provision for losses from guarantees issued by the Bank is as follows:

o 2021 2020
Provisions as at January 1 8,476 20,731
Charge/(release) for the year 9,572 {12,255)
Provisions as at December 31 - 18,048 8,476

20. Shareholder’s equity and reserves
The shareholding structure of the Bank is as follows: 5
As at As at
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
% Amonnt Y% . Amount
T.C.ZIRAAT BANKASI A8 100 10,000,000 100 - 10,000,000
100 10,000,000 100 10,000,000

In accordance with Law no. (4/1.-093 on “Banks, Microfinance Institutions and Non-Bank Financial
Institutions”, the minimum paid-in capital for domestic banks operating in Kosovo is EUR 7 million.

21. Net interest income

Year ended Year ended
Interest income using effective interest rate Pecember 31, 2021 December 31,2020
method o
Loans to customers 4,119,657 3,079,629
Deposits and balances with banks - 190,430
Investinents in securities 111,241 101,007
Total interest income 4,230,898 3,371,066
Interest expense using effective interest
rate method
Due to customers (1,045,213) (706,213)
Due to banks {36,332) {297,650)
Due to related parties banks (165,071) {76,593)
Due to Leases (42,599) -
Total Interest expense (1,289,215) (1,080,456)
Net interest income 2,941,683 2,290,610
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22. Net fee and commission income

Banking services

Fee and commission income
Banking services

License and other regulatory fees
Fee and commission expenses
Net fee and commission income

23, Other operating income

Capital gains

Release of provisions for guarantees
Other income

Tetal

24. Administrative and other operating expenses

Personnel (see below)
Security

Depreciation

Rent

Advertising and marketing
Repair and maintenance
Deposit insurance fees
Utilities and fuel
Professional charges and legal fees
IT services
Communication
Amortization

Office materials

Travel

Other

Change in provision for cash at banks (see note 8)
Change in provision for securities (see note 11)
Change in provision for guarantees (see note 19)
Total

Wages and salaries
Pension contributions
Other compensations
Total

Year ended Year ended
December 31,2621  December 31, 2020
522,161 608,827
522,161 608,827
(66,102) (45,140)
(100,426) {100,000)
(166,528) (145,140)
355,633 463,687
Year ended Year ended
December 31,2021 December 31, 2020
- : 1,690
- 12,255
3,397 . 54423
3,397 68,368
Year ended . " “Year ended
December 31,2021 - December 31, 2020
555,664 519,189
58,794 48,149
409,478 336,435
17,848 74,748
13,720 ©3,780
43,238 30,811
16,812 9,890
40,913 34,078
40,903 40,682
382,913 340,768
39,565 38,724
72,717 146,052
39,741 19,543
1,030 323
39,876 38,807
13,994 -
153 -
9,572 -
1,786,931 1,681,987
Year ended Year ended
December 31,2021  December 31, 2020
459,067 432,260
52,725 49,515
43,872 37,414
555,664 519,189
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25. Income tax
Income tax in Kosovo is assessed at the rate of 10% (2020: 10%) of taxable income.

Year ended Year ended

December 31,2021  December 31, 2020

Current tax charge {68,879) -
Deferred tax release {38,454) (124,113)

Total (107,373) (124,113)

The following represents a reconciliation of the accounting result to the income tax:

Year ended Year ended
December 31,2021 December 31, 2020

672,147 1,114,434
Profit / (loss) before income tax
Tax at the rate of 10%
Adjusted for:
Non-deductible expenses for rent 15,186 -
Non-deductible expenses/(income) other 5225 (6,685)
Additional tax deductible interest expenses 297,856 226,615
Exempt Income — Investment Securities (111,241) (101,007)
LLP and guaranties provision 194,554 7,769
Profit for the year 1,073,727 1,241,126
Income tax expense for the year 167,373 124,113

Deferred tax asset risen as a result of carried forward losses was fully recovered for the year ended 31
December 2021 as a result of profits realised. S

Deferred tax 2021 2020_
Opening deferred tax 38,494 162,607
Charge for the year {38,494) (124,113)
Closing deferred tax - 38,494

56



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2021
(All amounts expressed in EUR, unless otherwise stated)

26. Commitments and contingencies

The Barnk issues guarantees for its customers. These instruments bear a credit risk similar to that of loans granted
to customers. Based on management’s estimate, no material losses related to guarantees outstanding at
December 31, 2021 will be incurred.

Year ended Year ended
Guarantees December 31,2021 December 31, 2020
Secured by cash deposits -
Secured by other collateral 3,616,795 2,618,322
3,616,795 2,618,322

Credit Commitments
Approved but not disbursed loans 1,891,772 1,072,089
Unused portion of credit lines 23,112,629 11,469,165
Unused credit card facilities 25,004,461 12,541,254

Other collaterals pledged for guarantees, include mainly pledge and real estate properties.
Commitments represent the undrawn balances of toans, overdraft and card limits granted to the customers.

Litigations
As at December 31, 2021, there are no legal proceedings against the Bank.

27. Related party transactions

In accordance with IAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”, a related party is any party that has the ability to control
the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.

Related party transactions were made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.

In the course of conducting its banking business, the Bank entered into various business transactions with related
parties and the balances with the shareholders and affiliated individuals and entities at December 31, 2021 and

2020 are as follows:
Major shareholders
gﬁiﬁ?ﬂ?ﬁ man:lfgia{nen i and other parties Total
related to them

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2026
Balunces with banks - - - - 11,123,813 585,106 11,123,813 585,106
Loans to customers - - - - - - - -
Loans to customers, gross - - 16,086 9,241 - - 16,086 9,241
Allowance for impairment - - 66 65 - - 66 65
Loans to customers, net - - 16,152 9306 11,123,813 585,106 11,139,965 594,412
Cash collateral - - - - -
Net exposure - - 16,152 97306 11,123,813 585,106 11,139,965 594,412
Guarantees - - - - - - - -
Cash collateral - - - - - - - -
Net exposure - - 16,152 9306 11,123813 585,196 11,139,964 594,411
Due to custorners - - 89368 63,178 - 89,368 63,178

Due to related parties banks - - - 9544738 4,552,724 9,544,738 4,552,724

- - 89368 63,178 9,544,738 4,552,724 9,634,106 4,615,902

No collateral is left for these loans as of December 31, 2021 and 2020.
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27. Related party transactions (continued)

Transactions with related parties during 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Interest income
Fee and
commission
income -
Interest expense

Total

Major shareholders

gﬁ:?:;ﬁ manffegnen ¢ and other parties Total
g related to them

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
- - 367 1,392 - - 367 1,392

- - 367 1,392 - - 367 1,392

Total remuneration to the Bank’s key management is as follows:

2021 12020

Short-term employee benefits for Board of Directors -
Short-term employee benefits for key management 36,331 36,472

28. Events after the end of the reporting period

There were no events after the reporting date that would require

disclosures in these financial statements.
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